# MINUTES of the meeting of Health & Social Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee held at Council Chamber, The Shire Hall, St. Peter's Square, Hereford, HR1 2HX on Tuesday 3 May 2016 at 9.30 am

Present: Councillor PA Andrews (Chairman)

**Councillor J Stone (Vice Chairman)** 

Councillors: CR Butler, ACR Chappell, CA Gandy, JF Johnson, MD Lloyd-Hayes,

MT McEvilly, PD Newman OBE, A Seldon, NE Shaw and D Summers

In attendance: Councillors J Davidson, Mr P Deneen, M Samuels and Prof Rod Thomson

Officers: Claire Ward

## 73. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies were received from Councillor PE Crockett.

# 74. NAMED SUBSTITUTES (IF ANY)

None.

# 75. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

None.

# 76. MINUTES

The Minutes of the meeting held on 5 April 2016 were approved and signed as a correct record.

# 77. SUGGESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC ON ISSUES FOR FUTURE SCRUTINY

There were no suggestions.

#### 78. QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC

There were no questions from the public.

# 79. PUBLIC HEALTH ACCOUNTABILITY SESSION

The Committee received a presentation on public health. The director of public health provided the presentation and highlighted the following areas:

That according to Public Health England's (PHE) healthier lives table, Herefordshire
was one of the healthiest places in England to live. Out of the 150 local authorities
Herefordshire was ranked 21<sup>st</sup> in terms of its premature mortality rates. PHE defined
premature mortality as a death before the age of 75 years. Within this overall
ranking there were variations for particular diseases that were the causes of death.

In reply to a question from a member, the director said that there was a national change in drinking patterns, and that as more women were binge drinking it was likely that figures would remain static. Work on the relative risk of those drinking to excess not being treated by their GP was in hand, and targeted work was underway to encourage people to attend their local surgery.

In reply to a further question, the director said that the focus for the Home Office in this area was on cities and large towns, but that there was little appreciation of the needs of rural areas. HE agreed with another member that better education in alcohol use could lead to less alcohol abuse. National initiatives were underway with pubs and clubs to change their happy hour promotions.

- That whilst the government was advocating the need for preventative measure to improve health, austerity measures had meant that the treasury had reduced the public health grant nationally in 2015/16 by £200 million which equated to a 6.2% cut in the national and local grant. This meant a cut of £571k in the council's budget. A further cut was being made by the treasury for 2016/17 which was equivalent to an 8.5% cut in the grant, a loss of over £720k. The treasury was proposing an additional cut in 2017/18 of a further £200k. As the council received less than the national average per capita allocation, cuts would mean a reduction in the council's ability to invest in prevention services. Whilst it had been acknowledged nationally that rural councils receive less funding than their urban counterparts, national government had yet to take steps to allocate a fairer funding formula to address the needs of rural areas.
- That social isolation was a significant issue for poor health and that greater engagement with communities was an area that the council would have to be able to promote.

In reply to a question regarding the impact of cuts on the council's public health duties, the director said that cuts were already affecting the council, and that whilst it had the same responsibilities as all other local authorities, it was significantly underfunded compared to others. Public health funding in Kensington and Chelsea was £13k per Km², compared to £86 per km² in Herefordshire.

In reply to a comment from a member concerning the possibility of lobbying MP's and the Leader to consider redressing the negative funding gap, the cabinet member, health and wellbeing, said that whilst she was happy that the committee should write out to express its concerns, she would like to be assured that such a move would have an effect and that the right levers of power were being pulled in the most appropriate was in order to have a demonstrable effect.

The director said that better use could be made of the funds that were available to the council. An asset assessment would provide better understanding of what was available, and there was an opportunity to make better use of pre-existing networks within the county, such as the WI or school communications to parents.

In reply to a comment from a member, the director undertook to provide a briefing note that outlined to the committee what the council's public health responsibilities were.

A member commented that the county did not perform well in the area of breast feeding, and that the indicators were getting worse. She was concerned that money was being inappropriately spent in this area. The director said that work was underway with the Herefordshire Clinical Commission Group (HCCG) and the midwives at the Wye Valley NHS Trust to provide education and encouragement toward taking up breast feeding in the local community.

• That child health performance was generally around the national performance rates for the west midlands region and the figures for England. Immunisation rates for children were slightly below the regional average, although progress had been made in this area. Rates of dental caries were higher than the regional average, as were the number of children within the county who were clinically obese or over. Rates of physical activity amongst children and young people were low and there was concern that without changes to lifestyles, children and young people would be at greater risk of health problems such as heart disease and diabetes in later life.

The director undertook to provide a briefing report to members in their role as corporate parents with data regarding the levels of immunisation and GCSE attainments of children in care.

#### Resolved that

- a) The report be noted;
- b) briefing notes be provided that:
  - i. outlined to the committee what the council's public health responsibilities were
  - ii. and the levels of immunisation and GCSE attainments of children in care and;
- c) a report on young people and mental health issues be provided to the committee.
- d) an updated report on public health be provided to the committee in six month's time.

### 80. HEALTHWATCH UPDATE

The Committee received an updated report on the activities of Healthwatch Herefordshire (HWH). During his presentation, the Chairman of HWH highlighted the following areas: That:

- In March 2016 Healthwatch hosted an engagement event 'Question Time a Focus on Mental Health & Emotional Wellbeing' at Hereford Sixth Form College. The event involved an initial workshop to prepare a set of priority questions which prospective panellists had received in advance of the day. On the day, students, stakeholders and members of the public attended to put their questions to panellists which formed the second part of the questioning. The event took place over an extended lunchtime period to allow as many students as possible the opportunity to attend. As mental health services were shortly to be recommissioned, the event provided young people and the wider public with the opportunity to have their say in shaping Mental Health services in the county. There had been positive feedback from young people following the event.
- A member remarked that mental health issues seemed to be plagued by a perennial issue of lack of resources.
- A member pointed out that the recent Care Quality Commission (CQC) inspection had been critical of the services provided by the 2gether NHS Trust whilst being positive about the quality of the overall service in the county. The Chairman of HWH agreed, and pointed out that the Committee would shortly

have an opportunity to scrutinise the 2gether NHS Foundation Trust when they provided a report for their accountability session.

- The report included a thought shower which summarised Healthwatch Herefordshire involvement across Health & Social Care in Herefordshire.
- The director of children's wellbeing undertook to provide the committee with the council's policy document on mental health ahead of the next meeting.
- In reply to a question from a member regarding the table of Healthwatch enquiries, the Chairman said that the figures were monitored and any themes or trends were fed back to the organisations concerned.
- Resolved

#### That:

- a) the report be noted; and
- b) any items for further attention be identified for addition to the committee's work programme.

The meeting ended at 11.50 am

**CHAIRMAN**